Message

From: Stewart, Chris (TEO) [/O=NIGOV/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7E1100D6473B41C3B31BDC2FCCA29F82-CHRIS STEWART 1022]
Sent: 08/03/2020 20:20:38

To: Baker, Derek [derek.baker@education-ni.gov.uk]; Sterling, David [david.sterling@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk]
cC: Name Redacted @executiveofﬂce—ni.gov.uk]

Subject: RE: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH

Derek

| agree, and | noticed earlier today that the unchanged advice now sits even more incongruously alongside a description
of the Italian measures.

However, | trust that one way or another this will now be resolved. | fail to see how FCO can leave the advice
unchanged, but even if they do, all the ski resorts are now closed...

From: Baker, Derek

Sent: 08 March 2020 20:17

To: Stewart, Chris (TEO) <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; Sterling, David <David.Sterling@executiveoffice-
ni.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH

Chris,

Noted. But in light of the dramatic escalation of the measures adopted by Italy over the weekend and the
increase in both Coronavirus cases and deaths in that country, the FCO stance in my humble and admittedly
unprofessional opinion is astonishing. In effect the FCO advice to parties of school children and their adult
supervisors planning to go to northern Italy (and we in DE are having to refer inquirers to that advice) is that
there is no reason not to travel. Frankly, I am appalled and embarrassed at this. But I’ve taken it as far as I can
and will now defer to the FCO experts.

Derek

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)

From: Stewart, Chris (TEO) <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>

Date: Saturday, 07 Mar 2020, 9:37 am

To: Baker, Derek <Derek.Baker@education-ni.gov.uk>, Sterling, David <David.Sterling@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH

Derek
To be aware - you will have picked Michael's irritation from his email.

C
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Sent with BlackBerry Work (www.blackberry.com)

From: "Stewart, Chris (TEO)" <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>

Sent: 7 Mar 2020 09:36

To: "Goodfellow, Mark" <Mark.Goodfellow@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; "Ingram, June"
<June.Ingram@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; "Morrow, Carol" <Carol.Morrow(@ecxecutiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>;
"Griffith, Deirdre" <Deirdre.Griffith@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; "Sterling, David"
<David.Sterling@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>

Subject: FW: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300
SAT 7 MARCH

Mark, June

To be aware of Michael McBride's advice, which means that the analysis put to COBRA (M) meeting
on Monday will not include specific NI material (hence no specific briefing from me).

You will also sense Michael's irritation and caution on the prospect of departing from FCO advice.

It might be prudent to advise FM and dFM to soft pedal any raising of differences between UK and
Irish advice.

C

Sent with BlackBerry Work (www.blackberry.com)

From: "Stewart, Chris (TEO)" <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>
Sent: 7 Mar 2020 08:53
To: "Baker, Derek" <Derek.Baker@education-ni.gov.uk>; "Meharg, Tracy" <Tracy.Meharg@communities-
ni.gov.uk>; "Rooney, Bernie" <Bernie.Rooney@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; Name Redacted

EName Redacted (@cxecutiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; "McBride, Michael" <Michael.McBride(@health-ni.gov.uk>;
"Sterling, David" <David.Sterling@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300
SAT 7 MARCH

Derek, Tracy

In view of Michael's advice we can stand this down. Apologies if | have generated some nugatory
work, but the position was not clear yesterday evening, and the commission (and teleconference)
appeared to suggest that a response was expected from devolved administrations.

C

Sent with BlackBerry Work (www.blackberry.com)

From: "McBride, Michael" <Michael. McBride@health-ni.gov.uk>

Sent: 7 Mar 2020 00:58

To: "Baker, Derek" <Derek.Baker@education-ni.gov.uk>; "Stewart, Chris (TEO)"
<chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; "Meharg, Tracy" <Tracy.Meharg@communities-ni.gov.uk>;
"Pengelly, Richard" <Richard.Pengelly@health-ni.gov.uk>
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Cc: "Chada, Naresh" <Naresh.Chada@health-ni.gov.uk>; "Rooney, Bernie" <Bernie.Rooney@executiveoffice-

ni.gov.uk>; Name Redacted {@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; "Sterling, David"

<David.Sterling(@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>;i Name Redacted (@executiveoffice-

ni.gov.uk>;; Name Redacted (@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>;! Name Redacted |

' Name {@education-ni.gov.uk>; ! Name Redacted (@education-ni.gov.uk>;
Name Redacted ‘@education-ni.gov.uk>; "Hepper, Fiona" <Fiona.Hepper@education-

...............................

ni.gov.uk>; Name Redacted i@health-ni.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300
SAT 7 MARCH

Derek,

Sorry just now catching up on a day of emails. These communications in my experience have previously been
largely directed to Whitehall Departments. I interpret this no differently.

In NI as you indicate we simply do not have the modelling capability to replicate and provide such granularity
and have not previously sought to provide same.

Given the unrealistic timeframes it is not possible to provide any meaningful analysis. I am unclear as to why
this has now been interpreted and escalated as a “must do.” In that this is a marathon not a sprint we all have a
responsibility to look out for each other and respective teams while respecting the extraordinary effort now
required which many of our teams have already been delivering for some many weeks.

These timeframes are driven by the rapidly changing epicurve (epidemiological evidence of community
transmission & spread) and the need for imminent implementation of behaviour interventions in England -
“social distancing interventions” - to flatten and delay the peak in disease and minimise the pressures on the
NHS.

In NI not withstanding the evidence of deeply troubling and significant community transmission in Rol which is
our other risk of wider community spread, we are probably some few weeks behind.

I would suggest that we await further modelling by SAGE - in which I participate- and extrapolation by NHSE
& PHE as to the “numbers” given their capacity and capability to do so. We can then superimpose/model NI
specific considerations and factors such as you have already helpfully provided. DoH team will consider in the
morning.

Our first consideration remains our policy and professional responsibilities for the population of NI and in
particular wider considerations in relation to the interface within a UK and wlder NI/Rol dimension from a
public health perspective.

It is a matter of fact that this epidemic/pandemic will vary in its impact and consequences across regions of
England, the DAs and Rol over time. Our priority across government is to ensure that we remain focused on our
priorities at this time while still in the containment phase, recognising other parts of the UK are in a different
place and preparing for “surge” with plans to mitigate impacts on public services and wider society.

That said in a matter of weeks we will be all in the same place. We have however some time - not a great deal -
to fully and accurately consider and quantify the implications and any unique impacts in NI as opposed to us
responding to unrealistic deadlines and risk providing less than fully informed analysis and information.

David’s consideration to ensure we have a dynamic, flexible and nimble approach to next steps and phases. This
would be much appreciated in health given our particular focus on mitigation of health consequences.
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Separately I have also noted Chris’s email in relation to FMdFM approach to SoS NI in relation to the
incongruity between DFA Rol and FCO advice re travel to Italy. I will provide my professional advice as CMO
prior to Monday’s COBR(M).

My professional advice will be in the context of the UK position that the responsibility for authoritative
competent advice on the safety of travel remains with the FCO which has UK wide responsibility. To provide
advice other than this has significant financial implications. I do however fully recognise the complexity and
incongruity of current advice to schools in NI and the Rol and I am giving due consideration to both the
individual health and wider public health implications of FCO current advice.

Michael

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)

From: Baker, Derek <Derck.Baker@education-ni.gov.uk>

Date: Friday, 06 Mar 2020, 11:20 pm

To: Stewart, Chris (TEO) <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>, Meharg, Tracy <Tracy.Meharg@communities-
ni.gov.uk>

Cc: McBride, Michael <Michael.McBride@health-ni.gov.uk>, Chada, Naresh <Naresh.Chada@health-ni.gov.uk>, Rooney,
Bernie <Bernie.Rooney@executiveoffice-ni.gov. uk> Name Redacted ‘aexecutiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>, Sterling,
David <David. Sterhng@executlveofﬁce—m gov. uk> Name Redacted {@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>,

i Name Redacted @executlveofﬁcé:ﬁi'}z"c'i'\'f"ﬁk'5" Name Redacted i@education-ni.gov.uk>,

E Name Redacted ‘weducation-ni.gov. uk>4 Name Redacted i@education-ni.gov.uk>,
Hepper, Fiona <Fiona.Hépper{@educafion-ni.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH

Chris,

Just to add to this, the average daily cost of a substitute teacher in a mainstream school (of which there are
1,100) is approximately £200, including direct pay and employers’ costs, such as NI and pension; and £250 in a
special school (of which there are 39). I really don’t think this helps very much as I have no way of modelling
likely absence rates under any of the scenarios. I suppose the best you can say is that typically each 7 day
isolation of a teacher who is replaced by a substitute teacher will cost the education budget an additional £1,000.

Derek

Sent with BlackBerry Work
(www.blackberry.com)

From: Stewart, Chris (TEO) <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>
Date: Friday, 06 Mar 2020, 6:39 pm
To: Baker, Derek <Derek.Baker@education-ni.gov.uk>, Meharg, Tracy <Tracy.Meharg@communities-ni.gov.uk>
Cc: McBride, Michael <Michael.McBride@health-ni.gov.uk>, Chada, Naresh <Naresh.Chada@health-ni.gov.uk>, Rooney,
Bernie <Bernie.Rooney@executiveoffice-ni.gov. uk>' Name Redacted {wexecutiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>, Sterling,
David <David.Sterling@executiveoffice-ni.gov. uk>} Name Redacted i@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>,

' Name Redacted {@executiveoffice-ni.gov. uk>, ! Name Redacted {@education-ni.gov.uk>,

Name Redacted weducation-ni.gov.uk>,| Name Redacted i@education-ni.gov.uk>,

Hepper Fiona <Fiona. Hepper(a)educatlon—m gov.uk>
Subject: RE: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH
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Derek
Thank you, this is very helpful.

6

From: Baker, Derek

Sent: 06 March 2020 18:28

To: Stewart, Chris (TEO) <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; Meharg, Tracy <Tracy.Meharg@communities-
ni.gov.uk>

Cc: McBride, Michael <Michael.McBride@health-ni.gov.uk>; Chada, Naresh <Naresh.Chada@health-ni.gov.uk>; Rooney,
Bernie <Bernie.Roonev@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>§ Name Redacted @executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; Sterling,
David <David.Sterling@ executiveoffice-ni. ov.uk>;§L Name Redacted L@executivleoffice-ni.gov.uk>;

......................... RS T
Name Redacted @executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>! Name Redacted i@education-ni.gov.uk>;

Name Redacted i@education-ni.gov.uk> Name Redacted i@education-

ni.gov.uk>; Hepper, Fiona <Fiona.Hepper@education-ni.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH

Chris,
We spoke.

It’s stating the obvious that these questions are impossible to answer with anything remotely approaching any degree of
certainty or accuracy, and any response must be caveated in those terms. Furthermore, | believe the questions are
unanswerable (certainly from a DE perspective) because, for each of the three potential interventions, they are asking
for some quantification of the numbers affected and the level of risk. | have precisely no idea, nor could | have, how
many symptomatic cases may present in the wider education “community”, be that staff and pupils.

That said, some off the cuff impressions from an education perspective.

By way of numbers, the school population {including nursery and pre-school) is 340,000, and the wider education
workforce, including teaching and non-teaching staff and youth services, numbers approximately 60,000 headcount
(40,000 FTE) , of whom approximately 19,000 FTE are teachers.

| really can’t differentiate between measure 1 and 2. Measure 2 is an extension of measure 1 in terms of the period of
isolation and the number of people involved. Obviously, measure 2 will automatically involve children of adults who
present with symptoms, but really the difference boils down to the numbers affected.

In general terms, from a broad education/youth services perspective, the potential impacts of home isolation, be that
adults or children, for 7 days or 14 days, are as follows:

e  Teaching staff unavailable, resulting in a loss of teaching provision in schools in the run up to high stakes public
examinations — GCSE and A Levels. This could provoke a large number of cases of pupils applying for “exceptional
circumstances”;

e  Substitute teachers being required in large numbers resulting in added costs for the education sector (I’ll provide
tomorrow the average daily cost of a substitute teacher);

e Disruption to the location of examination centres (normally schools) for public examinations if absences of teachers
and/or invigilators mean that centres cannot function properly;

e  Loss of learning for pupils in the run-up to public examinations if large numbers of pupils are absent from school,
probably resulting a large numbers of applications for “special circumstances”;

e  Special measures having to be introduced — and this would be on a UK wide level because of the nature of GCSEs
and A Levels — to facilitate the taking of GCSEs and A Levels if large numbers of pupils were not available to take them
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according to the planned timetable because of self-isolation. In an extreme scenario, this might mean delaying such
examinations. This in turn could have a knock on impact on acceptances to university.

e  Difficulty in providing some critical services to the education and youth sectors, such as the school meals service,
home to school transport (particularly for special needs pupils), if large numbers of non-teaching staff are self-isolating
and unable to work;

e  Some pupils having to remain at home if there are insufficient staff to supervise them in schools and pre-school
settings. This could particularly impact on special needs pupils who require particular levels and intensity of support;

e  All of the above impacting on the wider economy and provision of services if parents are having to remain at home
to look after self-isolating children.

This is a very rough and ready, off the top of my head assessment of the potential impacts.

I should add that our standard business continuity plans have regard to all of the above issues, including the
examinations issues. All the UK examinations awarding and regulatory bodies work, and are working, closely together
on this to develop plans for every scenario. The main issue here is the sheer scale of what may occur with so many
individuals having to self-isolate simultaneously.

I'll have another look at this tomorrow and add to this when | have time to reflect. I’'m about to get locked into Rathgael
House!

Derek

From: Stewart, Chris (TEO)

Sent: 06 March 2020 17:47

To: Baker, Derek <Derek.Baker@education-ni.gov.uk>; Meharg, Tracy <Tracy.Meharg@communities-ni.gov.uk>

Cc: McBride, Michael <Michael.McBride@health-ni.gov.uk>; Chada, Naresh <Naresh.Chada@health-ni.gov.uk>; Rooney,

Bernie <Bernie.Roonev@executiveoffice-ni.gov.ukl>? Name Redacted 5@e)gecutiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; Sterling,
David <David.SterIing@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>4j Name Redacted @executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>;
i Name Redacted @executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>

Subject: FW: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH

Derek, Tracy

Brace yourselves.

Please see the request below from Cabinet Office, requesting information on the effects of potential mitigation
measures in respect of coronavirus. A return is sought by 1.00pm tomorrow on the first two actions, and by 6.00pm on
the third (on which more information is to follow). | have just finished a teleconference with CCS, which did not

enlighten much beyond what is given below.

Any information you could provide would be helpful, even brief qualitative / descriptive material, particularly if there
are any unique NI features that we could provide.

Sent: .06 March 2020.16:39

Tni_.Name Redacted._, @no10.gov.uk>; Imran Shafi <IShafi@nol0.gov.uk>; Name Redacted ‘@no10.gov.uk>;

Name Redacted @no10.gov.uk> Name Redacted @nol0.gov.uk>; cabinet.secretary

<cabinet.secretary@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; hsschina@cabinetoffice.gov.uk Name Redacted
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i NR !@cablnetofflce.gov.uk>£ NR @cablnetofflce gov. uk>‘ NR '

: NR {@cabinetoffice.gov uk>: Sfeffan - Cabinet Office (OFF- SEN) <steffan.jones@cabinetoffice.gov. uk>; NR |
i@cabineto;

""c'é'B'.'ﬁ'e"t""de'IEe (OFF-SEN) NR @ cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Beth Sizeland <beth.sizeland@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>;
David Quarrey <David. Quarrev@cabmetofflce gov.uk>; Jonathan Black - Official mailbox
I_g,LQna_thanlbla k@cabinetoffice.gov. uk>- NR fd)cablnetofflce gov. uk>- ____________ NR ,

: NR @cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Carol McCall <Carol. McCaII@cablnetofflce gov. uk> Alex Aiken
<Alex.Aiken@cabinetoffice. gov. uk>- NR @cablnetofflce gov.uk>; Sharon - Cabinet Office (OFF-
SEN) <sharon sawers@cablnetofflce gov.uk>; Kirstee Driver <kirstee. drlver@cablnetofﬁce gov uk>NR

Service <ch|ef.execut|ve@cab|netofflce.gov.uk>, CCS Control Mailbox <CCS.ControI@cablnetofflce.gov.uk>, CCS
Recovery Mailbox <ccsrecovery@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Katharine Hammond
<katharine.hammond@ cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Natasha Grant <Natasha.Grant@cabinetoffice. ZOV. uk>; Kate Noble

<kate nohle@cab.metofflce gov.uk>; Peter Tallantire <peter.tallantire@ cabinetoffice.gov. uk>‘ NR E

NR @cabinetoffice.gov. uk>: Nikki Marcel <Nikki.Marcel @cabinetoffice.gov. uk>: Zonia Cavanagh
<Zon|a Cavanagh@cabinetoffice.gov. uk>, NR i cabinetoffice.gov. uk>. NR

NR i@ cabinetoffice.gov. uk>~ NR i@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Paul McCIoé_ﬁFie_ ''''''''''''''''''
Vzﬁga]'_meaaghrle@cabmetofflce goy. uk'S. NR L @cabinetoffice.gov. uk>NR ''''''''''' 1
i NR i@cabinetoffice.gov. uk>‘ NR {@cabinetoffice.gov. uk>* NR

NR @cablnetofflce gOV. uk>. NR {@cabinetoffice. go;_ﬁ'lz; NR
NR @cablnetoffice gov uk>; COBR Cabinet Office [Flex-C] <cobr@cab|net offlce X.gsi.gov.uk>;

NR -Energy DeveIopment & ReS|I|ence. NR ’@beis.gov.uk>; Government Chief Scientific
Adviser (GO-Science) <gcsa@go- suence gov.uk>! gov.uk: Stuart.Wainwright@Go-....
Science.gov. ukNR’Go SCIence. NR @go “SCience. gov. uk>; NR @go-

._._.C_.'_‘?_.’]E?_.g_.g‘.’_.}.‘_l_? SAGE Mailbox (Go- SC|ence)<_g_i 1&S »; GO-Science Resilience: 1&S
: |&s {>; Coronavirus Taskforce (Sen5|t|ve) <CoronaV|rustaskforce@fco gov.uk>; GIobaI Response Centre

action@fco.gov.uk>; Julia Longbottom (Sensitive) <Ju||a.Iongbottom@fco.gov.uk>, Richard Morris * (Kathmandu)
(Sensitive) <Richard.Morris@fco.gov.uk>; Gareth.hoar2 @fco.gov.uk; Jayd.davies@fco.gov.uk;
DGEGI.PrivateOffice@fco.gov.uk NR ;VdDi fco.gov.uk; Geoff Hope (DFID) (External) <g-hope@dfid.gov.uk>;
peter.jinks@defra.gov.uk; SM-Defra-Emergencies (CPSD) <emergencies@defra.gov.uk>; Rosenorn-Lanng, Jon
<Jon.Rosenorn-Lanng@defra.gov.uk>; NR i@defra.gov. uk; covid19-CPDEnquiries@apha.gov.uk

QPERATIQONSCENTRE, DfE <dfe.operationscentre@education.gov. uk>. NR ' _________________
______________ NR @education.gov. uk>i NR .@educatlon gov.uk; NR @dfid.gov. uk> NR |
NR @dfidgov.uki NR _@dfidgovikl . NR_. |@dfidgov.uki NR i@dfidgovik, NR__@dfidgovik
“Maria Wyard <M-Wyard@dfid. gp\t,_uk.? ........... NR i@ DFID.gov.uk; TSOT<TSOC@dft.gsi. gov'_u'_l'& NR !
E NR @ dft.gov. uk>. NR @dft gov.uk; James Brereton <James.Brereton@dft.gov.uk>; Covid- 19spoc

<covid-19spoc@dhsc.gov.uk>; RWCS SPOC <RWCS.Spoc@dhsc.gov.uk>; Emma. Reed <Emma.Reed@dhsc.gov.uk>;
Dodds, Kevin <kevin.dodds@dhsc.gov.uk>; Lamberti, David <daV|d.Iambert|@dhsc gov.uk>;

NR E@dhsc.gov.ulld NR @dhsc.gov.uk>j | NR 5
NR @dhsc.gov.uk>i NR @dhsc gov.uk; Whitty, Chris <Chris. Whitty@dhsc.gov.uk>; Van Tam,
“Jonathan <Jonathan.VanTam @dhscgov uk>, _ NR ,@dhsc.gov.uk>, Kate Thomas
<kate.thomas@dhsc.gov. uk>= NR é@dhsc.gov.uk>' NR @dhsc.gov.uk>;
natasha.price@dhsc.gov. uk" NR
NR @dhsc.gov. uk> Permanent Secretary <Permanent. Secretarv@dhsc gov uk>,.'
Jamle Njoku-Goodwin@dhsc. gov uk; PHE.NICC30 <PHE.NICC30@phe.gov.uk>; ERD.OnCall <erd oncall@phe gov. uk>
i NR he.gov.uk>;! i NR @phe.gov.uk>i NR |
<yvonne.doyle@phe.gov.uk>; Ruth.Milton@phe.gov.uk; Nick.Gent@phe.gov.uk; resilience. HSE@hse gov.uk; Central
Secretariat <censec@ gchg.gov.uk>,{'"""""'ﬁ|'i """""" {DWP DWP SPD SECURITY CONTINUITY RESILIENCE AND RESPONSE
NR @dwp.gov.uk>; NR  iDWP BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND RESILIENCE: ___NR 5@dwp gov.uk>;
NR @DWP GOV.UK; emergency. response@dwp gsi.gov.uk; PerrT]__S_e_g_.,_A__c_fc_l‘g_r_]_‘__l‘-IMT
<Act|on PermSec@hmtreasurv gov.uk> NR _'d)hmtreasurv gov.uk;i | NR HMT
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: NR @hmtreasury.gov. uk> NR @hmtreasury.gov.uk>; Lombard_e__l_l_!___g_l_a__r_g_____lj_l_\_/_I‘T
L'E_Clmé'r_éml'__amrﬁﬁérdelll@hmtreasury gov uk>;i NR @hmtreasury.gov.uk>;i NR i
NR @hmtreasurv.gov.uk>,5 NR @hmtreasury.gov.uk>;! NR
NR i@hmtreasury.gov. uk>; Taylor, Joe -HMT <ioe.tavlor@hmtreasurv.gov.uk>;E _________ NR FHMT
NR & @ hmtreasury.gov.uk>; i NR @hmtreasury.gov uk>,,L NR
HM'E NR ,@hmtreasurv =ov.uk>,i NR @Dhmtreasury.gov.uk>; Fran - HMT
NR @hmtreasury.gov.uk>; NR @hmtreasury gov. uk>,. NR L HMT
NR i@hmtreasurv.é&fﬁl&}@ NR @food.gov. uk>;
NR Dattorneygeneral.gov.uk; Carole Mercer <Carole.Mercer@governmentlegal.gov.uk>;
NR @governmentlegal.gov.uk; Mel.Nebhrajani@governmentlegal.gov.uk;
Henry.Riplev@gbvernmentlegal.gov.uk;g NR i@governmentlegal.gov.uk> NR:
NR @homeoffice.gov.uk>; Gawley Sarah <Sarah.Gawley@homeoffice.gov.uk>; Pattinson Neil
<Neil.Pattinson@homeoffice.gov. uk>,. """""" NR @homeoffice.gov.uk; OpsCentreGold
<0OpsCentreGold@homeoffice.gov. ukS_IB_éﬁ_éFf_r'ﬁ_éﬁfaIOperatlonsCentre
<DepartmentaIOperatlonsCentre@homeofflce.gov.uk>,: ''''''''''' N -ﬁw-'"'-_@homeoffice.gov.uk;
NR i@homeoffice.gov. uk,. NR @homeoffice.gov.uk>; Moore Emma (Border Force)
'z_l'i_fﬁmr_h_g_l'\_/'l-aoreZ@homeofflce gov.uk>; BorderForceNCC <borderforcencc@homeoffice.gov.uk>;
NR @mod.gov.uk;i  NR___ B2 (SPO CTandUK-AH Pol); NR ®mod.gov.uk>i NR |
NR :ISRG Civil Contingencies Secretarlat(Cablnet Office); NR @cablnet office.x.gsi.gov. uk>,. '''''''' N R ''''''''
""" 'ﬁj'R_'m""FIt Lt (SPO DSR-Phys Sy PoI‘ NR @mod.gov. uk?- ,_,.m[‘_lﬁ,_,m._..:_Cl (SPO DJEP-NI LILS 2)
NR @mod gov.uk>i  NR iC2 (SPO Globallssues-CBRN2) i NR @mod. gov.uk>; COVID19-

“Miain <3019~ NCoV@mod.gov. uk> SPODSR- ResﬂnenceGroup@mod gov.uk; DCMC CDSDO-Office <DCMC-CDSDO-
Office@mod.gov.uk>; SPOCts-Crisis- OCPMuItluser@mod.gov_.uk, SPO CTandUK-Mailbox (MULTIUSER) <SPOCTandUK-

Mailbox@mod.gov.uk>;§ NR @justice.gov.uk>; Shaun.McNaIIy@Justice.gov.ukﬁ:_____rg_l_g___i
i NR ;@iustice.gov.uk>; Linda.Kennedv@Justice gov uk; Pickering, Richard

<NIMU@|ust|ce gov.uk>; MoJ DOC Inbox <MoJ DOC lnbox@lustlce gov.uk>; dutysecurityofficer@justice.gsi.gov.uk;
r____p_g__!g_r_]_gl_:g_p_r__r_@ _ ____ nhs.net; SPOCSKH, England (NHS ENGLAND & NHS IMPROVEMENT - X24) <england.spocskh@nhs.net>;

i NR NHS ENGLAND & NHS IMPROVEMENT - X24) NR @nhs.net>; GROVES, Stephen (NHS

i NR @communities.gov.uk; telecoms. reS|I|ence@cuIture gov.uk;! NR i

i NR @culture.gov. uk>, NR ”d)culture gov.uk>; Laura Smith
<laura. smlth@culture gov. uk> Andy Shlelds <andy. shlelds@culture gov.uk>; Giles Smith <giles.smith@culture.gov.uk>;
. NR nio.gov.uk>;

NR @nlo gov. uk>- :
NR @ukgovwales gov uk> i NR @gov.scot; sgorrmajorevents@gov scot;i

: NR @gov.scot,! NR Dgov.scot; SGCoronavirus@gov.scot:; i

sghru@gov.scot;i NR i@gov.scot} NR i@gov.scot; DoH Health Gold Ops Cell
<healthgold.opscell@health-ni .gov.uk>; NR ‘@health-ni.gov.uk>;
Private.Office@health-ni.gsi.gov.uk; TEO CCPB <CCPB@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>;! NR ®executiveoffice-
ni.gsi.gov.uk; Stewart, Chris (TEO) <chris.stewart@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; Roorli_é_\'/_,_ﬁé?ﬁig ''''' I
<Bernie.Rooney@executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk>; emergencies.security@gov.wales;? NR @gov.wales;
Gary.Haggaty@gov.wales; Neil.Surman@gov.wales; Reg.Kinatrick@gov.waIes;}L NR :@gov.wales;ii _________ NR !
NR '''''''' @cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Sarah Shannon <sarah.shannon@cabinetoffi_'c_é._é'(;;/'?t_ji{;;']ohn McMichael
<john.mcmichael @ cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Mark Sweeney <mark.sweeney@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>; Emma Payne

<emma.payne@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>;: NR @ cabinet-office.gsi.gov.uk>; NR
NR . @ccs.gsigov.uk>; NR {@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>;i NR
NR @ cabinetoffice.gov.uk> T J

Subject: COMMISSION - IMPACTS OF NON-PHARMACEUTICAL INTERVENTIONS - BY 1300 SAT 7 MARCH

Good afternoon,
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Please could all Departments provide a return by 1300 on Saturday 7 March, with a named contact and
number that the Cabinet Secretariat can liaise with on Saturday and on Sunday for any further details.

Please email returns to john.mcmichael@cabinetoffice.gov.uk,; NR ?@cabinetoffice.gov.uk and
5 NR @cabinetoffice.gov.uk, copying in ccs.control@cabinetoffice.gov.uk
Measures:

1. Home isolation of symptomatic cases (7 day duration)
2. Whole household isolation where there is a symptomatic case (14 day duration)
3. Social distancing for vulnerable groups [in line with DHSC description of policy options]

DHSC will circulate a description of each of these measures via CCS Control, including scope, duration and
what activity would be limited, by 6pm Friday. Departments should apply the assumption about effect of the
measures that are being circulated by CCS this evening.

ALL DEPARTMENTS to set out, for each of the 3 potential interventions (or their variants):

o What are the impacts of these measures? As relevant, please consider these:

o on people and families - e.g. on health, income, benefits, education, childcare, wellbeing, medical treatment,
food supply, leisure activity?

o On public service delivery (e.g. on welfare, health and social care, education, policing?)

There will clearly be interaction between these e.g. the effect on vulnerable elderly person in receipt of social
care at home, would intersect with the wider effect on social care provision, through measures affecting the
workforce.

These impacts should be quantified wherever possible in terms of the numbers affected and the level of risk.

o Where relevant, please break these down by impact on particular cohorts, including by age, household
type (including care homes) and income;

o Are there specific regional impacts?

o Are there specific implications for devolved policy areas and the Devolved Administrations?

We want to create case studies to illustrate the impacts on individuals and households. To enable this, please
consider the impacts for specific cohorts, for example:

e Over 70 years old single household with care needs

e Over 70 in good health and still working or volunteering

e Working age adults cohabiting

e Family (eg two parents two children school age)

+ Multi-generational household (over 65, working age, children)
¢ Low income households (children on free-school meals)

Mitigations

« What actions could be taken to mitigate each of these impacts, including public sector, private sector and
voluntary sector options?
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« What would the effect of each mitigation measure be?

¢ How would these actions be delivered? How much would they cost and how quickly could they be
delivered?

With thanks,

CCS Control

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE - LIMITED DISTRIBUTION, PLEASE DO NOT FORWARD WITHOUT
PERMISSION
PLEASE COPY THIS EMAIL ADDRESS INTO ALL RESPONSES

CCS Control

Civil Contingencies Secretariat
ccs.control@cabinetoffice.gov.uk

{ A ——

Please do not send personal data, in particular sensitive or special category data, to the CSS Control mailbox as
we do not need this information for the purposes of the Covid-19 response. For your information, personal data
is any information that relates to an identified or identifiable individual. Sensitive, or special category, data
includes personal data concerning or revealing health. Therefore, information such as patients’ details and
plane manifests should not be sent to the CSS Control mailbox.
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